

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 238.12, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. Such rates may not be changed except as provided for in the approved franchise Procedures for rate changes may be established in the approved franchise by the municipality.

Sec. 20. HUMAN RIGHTS; APPROPRIATIONS.

The commissioner of human rights shall coordinate the provision of human rights services in the city of Duluth with other state agencies. The commissioner shall provide the services, including at least one employee at the Duluth location, in a cost-effective manner during the biennium ending June 30, 1983.

For purposes of this section, there is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of human rights the sum of \$20,000 to be made available until June 30, 1983.

Sec. 21. REPEALER.

Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 35.695, is repealed.

Sec. 22. REPEAL.

Laws 1974, Chapter 400, Section 8, Subdivision 5, added by Laws 1980, Chapter 507, Section 8, is repealed.

Sec. 23. EFFECTIVE DATE.

Sections 5, 6, and 22 are effective the day after compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021, Subdivision 3, by both of the town boards of the towns of Moose Lake and Windemere. Section 7 is effective upon approval by the Sandstone city council and compliance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 645.021, Subdivision 3. Sections 11 to 19 are effective the day following final enactment.

Approved March 22, 1982

CHAPTER 515 — H.F.No. 612

An act relating to cable communications; changing the definition of cable communications system; reducing the number of days available to the metropolitan council for review of cable service territory proposals; conforming the certificate of confirmation term to the franchise term; authorizing rules preventing obstruction of service to multiple unit dwellings and tracts of multiple dwelling units; providing to municipalities the option concerning cable service rates information included in a franchise; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 238.02, Subdivision 3; 238.05, Subdivision 7, and by adding a subdivision; 238.09, Subdivisions 6 and 7, and by adding a subdivision; 238.12, by adding a subdivision; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 238.12, Subdivisions 1 and 2.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 238.02, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. "Cable communications system" ~~shall mean~~ means ~~any a~~ system which operates ~~for hire~~ the service of receiving and amplifying programs broadcast by one or more television or radio stations and ~~any~~ other programs originated by a cable communications company or by another party, and distributing ~~such~~ those programs by wire, cable, microwave or other means, whether ~~such~~ the means are owned or leased, to persons who subscribe to ~~such~~ the service. Such This definition does not include:

- (a) ~~any a~~ system which serves fewer than 50 subscribers;
- (b) ~~any a~~ master antenna television system;
- (c) ~~any a~~ specialized closed-circuit system which does not use the public rights-of-way for the construction of its physical plant; and
- (d) ~~any a~~ translator system which receives and rebroadcasts over-the-air signals.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 238.05, Subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. The board shall approve or reject boundaries for specific territories upon receipt of proposals from municipalities or cable communications operator applicants, after consultation with the metropolitan council or the affected regional planning commission. If the proposed boundaries, in whole or part, are within the seven county metropolitan area, the metropolitan council shall be allowed ~~90~~ 45 days to review and comment on the proposed boundaries.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 238.05, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 19. The board may adopt rules to ensure reasonable access by cable systems to multiple unit dwellings and any site, lot, field, or tract of land and water upon which two or more occupied mobile or immobile dwelling units are located.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 238.09, Subdivision 6, is amended to read:

Subd. 6. Except as provided in subdivision 3, ~~every~~ a cable communications company shall ~~be required~~ to secure a certificate of confirmation from the board before becoming operational. Except as provided in subdivisions 3, 4, 5 and 9, ~~such~~ a certificate issued after the effective date of subdivision 4 may be granted after full board proceedings and shall be for a period of ten years the same number of years as the franchise to be confirmed. A renewal certificate of confirmation may be issued prior to the expiration of ~~any an~~ existing certificate.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 238.09, Subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. ~~Any~~ A renewal of a certificate of confirmation shall be for a ~~period of ten years the same number of years as the renewal franchise period.~~ A renewal certificate of confirmation may be issued prior to the expiration of ~~any~~ an existing certificate.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 238.09, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 11. Upon expiration of the certificate issued pursuant to subdivisions 3, 4, 5 and 9, or upon the renewal of a certificate prior to its expiration pursuant to subdivision 7, a certificate shall not be renewed unless the franchise is, or is amended to be, in compliance with the franchise requirements and procedures prescribed by the board.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 238.12, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 1a. The procedures for establishing all rates shall be set forth in the franchise ordinance. Rates charged by a cable communication company may be set forth in the franchise ordinance by the municipality. The franchise ordinance shall specify the current rates or in the alternative shall provide that the current rates and charges be available for public inspection in the municipality.

Sec. 8. **REPEALER.**

Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 238.12, Subdivisions 1 and 2, are repealed.

Sec. 9. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective the day following final enactment.

Approved March 22, 1982

CHAPTER 516 — H.F.No. 552

An act relating to commerce; prohibiting fraud in the use of recreational camping areas; providing a penalty; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 327.07; and 327.14, Subdivision 8.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 327.07, is amended to read:

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.